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DESCRIBE THE PRESENT AND ORIGINAL (IF KNOWN) PHYSICAL APPEARANCE

The old Bankers Loan and Trust Company building in Concord1a is a two story
brick building with limestone deta111ng and foundations. The design has been influenced
by the Queen Anne style, yet the ma551ng has been derived from traditional midwestern
bank architecture. The bu11d1ng is located on the northeast corner of Broadway and
Sixth street with the main entrance addressing the intersection. The building measures
20 feet across the Sixth street facade, and extends 60 feet to the north on Broadway

The major focal po1nt of the bu11d1ng is the main entrance at the corner. A
flight of cast iron stairs up to the main floor level wraps around the corner of the
building. A squat column which rests at the middle of the top stair supports the
upper story and the two archways leading to the main doorway which have been set at
right-angles. -The ornamentation on the building has been Toesély -interpreted from the
classical motif, and the capitals at the main entrance are a compressed Corinthian order
with volutes which curve inwards. Above each capital is a vegetative carving in relief.
The archivolts end in points which have been inset with other vegetat1ve carv1ngs
Rising from the intersecting point of these two arches at the corner is a carving
resembling a fleur-de-1is which begins the base of an oriel window. A wide band of
molding forms a sill for a row of five double hung windows with transoms that curve
around the face of the oriel. There are several bands of molding above the windows,
which, though they are different, correspond with the moldings in the balustrade.

The entrance which leads to the .second story staircase is located on the east. -
side of the south facade, which faces Sixth street. It is a single door with a fanlight.
The archway surrounding the door is supported on short columns similar to those at the
corner entrance. There is a flight of cast iron steps up to the entrance, just to the
west of which is the exterior staircase leading to the basement level. The space between
the two doorways on the first story is filled with a large window that has a transom
set in a segmental arch The panes of this transom have been divided into small square
11ghts S : - =

The second story windows are double-hung andhave simple stone lintels and sills.
The transoms, which have been divided into square 1ights, have been framed with smooth
limestone. There is an elaborate metal balustrade with recessed panels above the cornice.
Over each panel is a small triangular dormer.

, The west facade has been divided into four dissimilar bays. The bay on the south
end, on the first story, has a large arched window with a transom that is connected by
its smooth limestone frame to the arched southwest entrance. The windows on the second
story and the balustrade are detailed Tike-those on the south facade. The next bay to

~ the north has been marked off by brick piers which rise upwards on the second story.
The two segmental arched windows have fused frames and are treated as a sepaxate element.
The frame which encircles a round window fills the spandrel between the two windows,
below which is a vegetative carving. A stringcourse which begins at the base of the
brick pier continues across the facade. Above the stringcourse are two groups of triple
windows separated by a carved plaque with brackets which support a small projection
in the cornice that in turn forms a base for a relief carving of a temple facade with
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

The Bankers Loan and Trust Company building was erected in 1887-1888 from plans
prepared by thé architectural firm of W.H. Parsons and Son of Topeka.

The principals of the loan company were for the most part Concordia bankers or
Vermont investors who controlled one of the Concordia banks. - Concordia's first
chartered bank was established by investors from Brandon, Vermont, who sent their
own men to run the bank. Other banks that were later organized in the community
hired their management away from the first bank, so the staffs of the Concordia banks
had a definite Vermont background. In the 1880's many Eastern investors had more money
than they could invest locally and their attention turned to the West where capital
was needed to establish farms, businesses and communities and where interest rates
were high. ,

The Bankers Loan and Trust Company opened for business in rented quarters in
June, 1887. Its specialty was farm loans. In July the company purchased the lot
at the northeast corner of Broadway and Sixth streets for $6,000 and began planning
- for a $30,000 bu11d1ng

The ce11ar excavat1on was done in 1ate July. One of the 1oca1 newspapers reported
in mid- September that the plans were being prepared by W.H. Parsons, who was the
architect for the Cloud County Courthouse, also under construction at that t1me (That
courthouse no longer stands.) '

The contract for ‘the cornice work was awarded to Coron and Seyster, the pro-
prietors of the Concordia Cornice Company, and the Concordia Foundry had the contract
for the columns, door plating, staircases and other iron work.

The superintendent of the masonry work was Fred LaRoque. Foundations for the
*building were finished in late October. During the winter months the newspapers
reported that large paving stones were shipped to Concordia for the building and -
that the foundry was at work preparing the columns and door p]at1ng, but otherw1se
1ittle progress in-construction was mentioned. Bricklaying began in the spring and
was finished by July. During July and August the Concordia Corn1ce Company was at
work putting their sheet iron on the building. _ S

~ The Bankers Loan and Trust Company moved into their new building'inj1ate September,
1888. Apparently the company was in business for only a few years. The only yearly
state gazetteer listing them was the 1890 edition. The building was transferred from
the company in 1894 to its president, Theron B Smith of Brandon, Vermont. In 1908
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a pediment and fluted Ionic columns. The frieze on this balustrade contains two inter-
esting motifs. One seems to represent a facade with columns to either side supporting
an upper story with a tympanum, and the other has two stacked columns each with three
rectangular forms.

The next bay features an entrance at the first floor level. The double door has
been set in a round-headed arch, and there is a fanlight above the doors, while the
archivolt is pointed. The doorway, with windows on either side, is reminiscent of a
Serliana motif, but the flat-headed windows and the pointed doorway make it rather
unorthodox. There are two coupled windows above the stringcourse. The bounds of the
bay have been marked at the stringcourse level by two carved temple fronts similar to
the one in the balustrade, but with coupled Ionic columns. The balustrade crowning
this bay is shorter and is broken by a sharply pointed pediment that is covered with
relief.

The final bay on this facade also has an entryway reminiscent of a Serljana motif,
but the windows to either side have segmental arches and the central arch is pointed.
Above the stringcourse are two sets of coupled windows. The balustrade on this bay
has also been highly decorated. The upper cornice breaks slightly forward to accent a
curved pediment. The surface of the balustrade has been covered with small ornaments,
while the north corner is rounded and crowned with a sharp spire.

Windows*which 1ight the basement are rectangular and have been placed along the
exposed foundation to correspond with windows on the first story.

Originally there was a pointed spire which crowned the oriel window at the main
entrance. Portions of the stone and metal work were being painted white when the
accompanying photographs were taken.

8.

his estate sold the property to A.R. Maddox, and in 1945 the Maddox family sold it to
Delmer F. Harris, Sr. The property has remained in the Harris family.

The Bankers Loan and Trust Company is a sophisticated building by a Kansas arch-
itect. It presents a dynamic interplay between Classical and Gothic elements at varying
scales. The elements chosen, especially the two 1iberally translated Palladian motifs,
suggest the depth of Parson's architectural range. The building now forms an important
visual anchor in downtown Concordia through its mass, which is tempered by its careful
details. The building also had a role in the economic and financial development of
the community and recalls the town's boom days of the late 1880's.
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Concordia Empire, July 7, 28, September 15, 29, October 20, November 17, 24,
December 6, 1887; March 15, August 2, September 27, 1888.

Concordia Times, July 7, 25, September 22, October 13, November 24, December 15, 1887.

Emery, Janet Pease, It Takes People to Make a Town (Salina, Kansas, Arrow Printing
Co., 1970), pp. 57-65.




